
 
 
 
 

INDIVIDUAL CABINET MEMBER AND OFFICER DELEGATED DECISIONS 
 

THURSDAY, 29 JULY 2010 
 
 
 
Please find enclosed Decision Notices in connection with the following: 
 
 
 
 Individual Cabinet Member Decisions:  
 
1. Return of Monies Allocated to the Former Lancaster, Morecambe and District Sports 

Council (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 Officer Delegated Decisions:  
 
2. Window Replacement - Warton (Page 7) 
 
3. Choice Based Lettings and Housing Options (Page 8) 
 
Please note that these are subject to call-in. 
 
 
 
Queries regarding these documents 
 
Please contact David Watson - Democratic Services, Telephone 01524 582096 or e-mail 
dwatson@lancaster.gov.uk. 
 
 
Gillian Noall, 
Head of Democratic Services, 
Town Hall, 
Dalton Square, 
Lancaster LA1 1PJ 
 
Published on THURSDAY, 29 JULY 2010 

 



EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR DELEGATED OFFICER 
NOTICE OF DECISION  

 

TITLE OF DECISION:  
 

Return of Monies Allocated to the Former Lancaster, Morecambe & District Sports Council 
 

NAME OF DECISION TAKER: COUNCILLORS STUART LANGHORN, JUNE ASHWORTH AND JANE 
FLETCHER 

POSITION AND 
RESPONSIBILITY HELD: 

CABINET MEMBERS WITH RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCE, YOUNG 
PEOPLE AND GRANTS 

CONTACT OFFICER: GILLIAN NOALL 
TELEPHONE: 582060 
E-MAIL: gnoall@lancaster.gov.uk 

Details of Decision: 
 
(1) That the receipt be noted of £5,234.65, being the closing balance of the former Lancaster, 

Morecambe & District Sports Council’s bank account and those involved in providing this be 
thanked. 

 
(2) That the funds identified as having been donated by other organisations be returned as 

follows: 
James Bond Charity  £1,000.00 
Yvonne Watson Memorial Fund £500.00 

 
(3) That the remaining £3,734.65 fall into balances. 
 

Reasons for the decision (continue on separate sheet or append relevant papers as necessary): 
 
Having identified the source of monies in the bank account of the former Lancaster, Morecambe & 
District Sports Council and confirmed that the remaining funding was for the most part provided by 
the City Council, the decision provides for those monies clearly identifiable to be returned to the 
original donor and for the remainder to be returned to the City Council’s General Fund. 
 
Is the decision URGENT   
 
NO 
I CONFIRM THAT I HAVE BEEN CONSULTED ON THE ABOVE DECISION AND THAT IT IS URGENT AND 
REASONABLE IN ALL THE CIRCUMSTANCES. (IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 17 OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE 

RULES) 
SIGNATURE OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
CHAIRMAN: N/A 

I confirm that I have taken account of the options proposed by officers, the various 
implications set out in the report and the comments of the Monitoring and Section 151 
Officers and am authorising the decision as set out above. 
   

SIGNATURE OF DECISION TAKER: 
 

Councillor Stuart Langhorn 
Councillor Jane Fletcher 
Councillor June Ashworth 

DATE: 27 July 2010 
THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES REF NO. 2010/12 

DATE DECISION 
TAKEN: 

27 July 2010 DATE RECEIVED BY 
DEMOCRATIC 
SERVICES: 

28 July 2010 

DATE DECISION 
PUBLISHED: 

29 July 2010 
 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
(publication day + 5 
working days): 

6 August 2010 
 

A copy of the report considered by the decision taker should be appended to this form and 
forwarded immediately to Democratic Services on completion. 

Agenda Item 1 Page 1



 

 

CABINET  
  

 
Return of Monies Allocated to the Former Lancaster, 

Morecambe & District Sports Council  
 

Individual Cabinet Member Decision  
 

Report of the Head of Democratic Services 
  

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The report advises of the final steps in dealing with monies returned to the Council following 
the closure of the Lancaster, Morecambe & District Sports Council. 
 

Key Decision  Non-Key Decision X Referral from Cabinet 
Member  

Date Included in Forward Plan Not applicable. 

This report is public  

 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS  
 
(1) That the receipt be noted of £5,234.65, being the closing balance of the former 

Lancaster, Morecambe & District Sports Council’s bank account and those  
involved in providing this be thanked. 

 
(2) That the funds identified as having been donated by other organisations be 

returned as follows: 
 

James Bond Charity  £1,000.00 
Yvonne Watson Memorial Fund £500.00 

 
(3) That a sum of £1,500 be identified as grant funding for allocation to individual 

young sports persons in the district who can show that they have national or 
international potential, and the Head of Democratic Services be authorised to 
manage the application process alongside the small miscellaneous grants 
scheme, with the relevant Cabinet Member for Young People determining the 
applications. 

 
(4) That the remaining £2,234.65 fall into balances. 
 

Page 2



1.0 Introduction 
 
1.1 Until 2005/06 the City Council allocated 2 separate grants to the Lancaster, 

Morecambe & District Sports Council, with Service Level Agreements in place which 
set out the expectations of the City Council in terms of the service to be provided by 
the Sports Council and the level of funding to be made available for that purpose by 
the City Council.  One of these related to the organisation of the Youth Games and 
the other provided a sum of money for individual grants to young sports people in the 
District who had demonstrated the potential to advance to national or international 
level and a contribution towards the administrative costs of the Sports Council. 

 
1.2 Many Members will be aware of the problems in 2005/06 which resulted in officers in 

the former Leisure and Administration Services organising the games in Lancaster at 
short notice from both the sporting and civic side.  The intended grant of £50,000 was 
utilised for this purpose and not paid as a grant to the Sports Council. 

 
1.3 Subsequent participation in the Games organised by our twin towns has continued to 

be arranged by the City Council utilising the budget previously allocated for payment 
to the Sports Council for this purpose under the terms of the SLA. 

 
1.4 With regard to the second Agreement, although this was signed by the Sports 

Council in May 2005, this was just as they had advised of their difficulties regarding 
the organisation of the Youth Games and in order to safeguard the Council’s position 
regarding budgetary requirements for the Games, the Council did not sign or make 
the payment, nor was it requested by the Sports Council. 

 
1.5 As a result both SLAs in place with the Sports Council for the period 2005/06 to 

2008/09 were formally terminated by the City Council in October 2006 and no further 
payments were made. 

 
1.6 It was noted at that time that no individual grants had been awarded by the Sports 

Council for some time and accounts showed an accumulation of grant funding 
provided by the City Council and not allocated. 

 
1.7 As part of the decision to terminate the Service Level Agreements in October 2006, it 

was also agreed: 
 

‘That the Lancaster, Morecambe & District Sports Council be requested to return any 
outstanding funds held for grant purposes to the City Council for allocation.’ 

 
2.0 Proposal Details 
 
2.1 Since the report was presented to Cabinet members in October 2006 the Sports 

Council initially decided to re-launch itself but eventually in 2008 reached the 
conclusion that the organisation should be disbanded.  There followed a further delay 
in seeking out the former officers of the Sports Council with the authority to deal with 
the outstanding monies and the bank account. 

 
2.2 It was eventually agreed with the former Chairman and other former officers who 

were signatories of the bank account that the remaining funds should be passed to 
the City Council who would investigate the source of the funding and return any 
unallocated to the provider.  The bank account would then be closed. 

 
2.3 After a further period of delay the former Sports Council returned a sum of £5,234.65 

to the City Council in March 2010.  Since the details of who this funding should be 

Page 3



returned to could not be determined before the end of the year, a request to carry the 
sum forward into 2010/11 has been made to allow time for this to be done. 

 
2.4 The balance of £5,234.65 passed to the Council is made up as follows: 
 

Source of 
funding 

Amount  Information obtained 

Yvonne 
Watson 
Memorial fund  

£500.00 A memorial fund was set up by Mr. Tom Watson and 
the Sports Council have requested that this be 
returned to him to be used in whatever manner he 
wishes to commemorate his wife. 

James Bond 
Charity 

£1,000.00 The James Bond Charity Trust which is managed by 
the City Council with a Board comprising City Council 
Members and some independent trustees has records 
showing that payments of £1,000 per year (in 2 
instalments) were made to the Sports Council 
primarily to support the Youth Games and in particular 
the participation of disabled young people in the 
Games.  The last recorded payment was in 2003.  The 
payments in 2004 were missed in error and in 2005 
the Trust agreed to pay the outstanding sum as well 
as another £1,000 for 2005.  However this was never 
paid following the withdrawal of the Sports Council 
from the organisation of the games.  

It is reasonable to assume therefore that a maximum 
of £1,000 of the donated money remained in the 
account at the end of 2005. 

Kitchen and 
Hill Fund 

£1,669.00 Proceeds of a charity event given to the Sports 
Council to support cycling for the disabled.  It has 
been suggested that this could be used by the City 
Council to support disability sport in the district or to 
support future provision of the Youth Games.  

Lancaster City 
Council 

£2,065.65 The remaining balance can be attributed to 
accumulated general funds and unallocated individual 
grants funds which were paid by the Council in 
accordance with the Service Level Agreements, this 
being a sum of £250 towards the administration costs 
and £1,250 for grant allocation per annum as well as a 
varying amount for the organisation of the Youth 
Games dependent upon the venue each year.  These 
sums were paid each year with the final payment in 
April 2004.  A grant of £12,300 had been paid in April 
2004 for the organisation of the Games in Rendsberg 
that year.  The accounts show that there had been a 
surplus of £5,931 in respect of this grant, but this had 
been utilised for payments required in the early stages 
of organising the 2005 Games in Lancaster prior to 
the City Council taking over. 

 
3.0 Details of Consultation  
 
3.1 Contact has been maintained throughout this process with available officers of the 

former Lancaster, Morecambe & District Sports Council. 

Page 4



4.0 Options and Options Analysis (including risk assessment) 
 
4.1 Option 1 is to re-pay the sums set out in paragraph 2.4 which can be identified as 

being donated from a particular source and are easily returnable, i.e. in respect of the 
Yvonne Watson Memorial Fund and donations from the James Bond Charity, 
allowing the remainder to fall into balances. 

 
4.2 Option 2 is to re-pay the sums set out in paragraph 2.4 which can be identified as 

being donated from a particular source and are easily returnable, i.e. in respect of the 
Yvonne Watson Memorial Fund and donations from the James Bond Charity, and 
allocate the remainder or part of the remainder for a particular purpose related to the 
original purpose, for example the City Council could advertise the availability of 
individual sports grants for young people for one year only. 

 
4.3 Option 3 is to re-pay differing sums to those set out in paragraph 2.4 to the identified 

organisations, i.e. in respect of the Yvonne Watson Memorial Fund and donations 
from the James Bond Charity, allowing the remainder to fall into balances. 

 
4.4 Option 4 is to re-pay differing sums to those set out in paragraph 2.4 to the identified 

organisations, i.e. in respect of the Yvonne Watson Memorial Fund and donations 
from the James Bond Charity, and allocate the remainder or part of the remainder for 
a particular purpose, for example the City Council could advertise the availability of 
individual sports grants for young people for one year only. 

 
5.0 Officer Preferred Option (and comments) 
 
5.1 Option 2 is the officer preferred option.  This returns monies which can easily be 

identified to the original donor for future use as they wish and allows a proportion of 
the remainder donated by the Kitchen and Hill Charity event and by the City Council 
to assist promising young athletes in the district.   

 
5.2 It is suggested that a sum be identified for this purpose which could be advertised 

and managed alongside the small miscellaneous grants scheme in Democratic 
Services, with advice on criteria and the suitability of individual applicants provided by 
officers in the Community Engagement Service (Wellbeing). 

 
6.0 Conclusion 
 
6.1 It has taken a long period of time to bring this piece of work to a conclusion, but it is 

now possible to identify the source of monies in the bank account of the former 
Lancaster, Morecambe & District Sports Council and to be assured that the 
remaining funding was for the most part provided by the City Council.  The City 
Council now has the opportunity to return those monies clearly identifiable and to use 
the remainder for an appropriate purpose bearing in mind the original function or to 
assist in reducing the burden of identifying savings in the future budget process. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO POLICY FRAMEWORK 
 
Whilst not specifically identified within the Corporate Plan, encouraging participation in sport 
contributes to proposals to reduce health inequalities in the district contained in the LDLSP’s 
Thematic Group action plans.  
 

Page 5



 

CONCLUSION OF IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
(including Diversity, Human Rights, Community Safety, Sustainability and Rural 
Proofing) 
 
There are no direct implications as a result of this report. 
 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The financial implications are as set out in the report.  A sum of £5,234.65 has been paid to 
the City Council, but it is clear that not all this money originated from the City Council grants 
and should therefore be returned to the original donors. 
 
It is for Members to decide whether to allocate the remaining sum for a particular purpose or 
to allow this to fall into balances. 
 
The request to carry forward the money received is included in the Cabinet agenda for 27 
July 2010.  Should the request to carry forward be refused, there remains an obligation to 
return at least part of the money to the original donors and funding for this will need to be 
identified. 
 

SECTION 151 OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The S151 Officer has been consulted and has advised that Members’ decision on this matter 
will need to fit with the resolution of Cabinet at its meeting on 27 July 2010. 
 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS  
 
Legal Services have been consulted and there are no legal implications as a direct result of 
this report. 
 

MONITORING OFFICER’S COMMENTS 
 
The Monitoring Officer has been consulted and has no further comments. 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 

Contact Officer: Gillian Noall 
Telephone:  01524 582060 
E-mail: gnoall@lancaster.gov.uk 

 

Page 6



 
EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR DELEGATED OFFICER 

NOTICE OF DECISION  
 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER AND CONTACT OFFICER 
 

TITLE OF DECISION: 
WINDOW RENEWALS AT WARTON – 2010/11 PROGRAMME 

NAME OF DECISION TAKER: MARK CULLINAN 
POSITION AND 
RESPONSIBILITY HELD: 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

CONTACT OFFICER: ANN-MARIE COLLINSON 

TELEPHONE: 01524 582454 
E-MAIL: acollinson@lancaster.gov.uk 
Details of Decision:  
That A & G Trade Plastics Ltd be awarded the sub-contracting work for the supply and fitting of the windows 
to the properties at Warton. 
 
Reasons for the decision:   
The renewal of the windows at Warton forms part of the Council Housing 2010/11 Capital Programme. In 
undertaking these works the properties at Warton will continue to meet the Decent Homes Standard and the 
work will improve the energy efficiency of the properties. This is in line with the Corporate Priority to tackle 
the challenges of Climate Change. 
The tender received from A & G Trade Plastics Ltd was the lowest tender received. 
IS THE DECISION URGENT  
YES/NO  
 

I CONFIRM THAT I HAVE BEEN CONSULTED ON THE ABOVE DECISION AND THAT IT IS URGENT AND 
REASONABLE IN ALL THE CIRCUMSTANCES. (IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 17 OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PROCEDURE 
RULES) 
SIGNATURE OF THE OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY CHAIRMAN: N/A 

I confirm that I have taken account of the options proposed by officers, the various 
implications set out in the report and the comments of the Monitoring and Section 151 
Officers and am authorising the decision as set out above. 
   

SIGNATURE OF DECISION TAKER: Mark Cullinan 
DATE: 29 July 2010 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES REF NO. OD/2010/4 
DATE DECISION 
TAKEN: 29 July 2010 

DATE RECEIVED BY 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES: 29 July 2010 

DATE DECISION 
PUBLISHED: 29 July 2010 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
( publication day + 5 
working days): 

6 August 2010 

 
A copy of the report considered by the decision taker should be appended to this form and 

forwarded immediately to Democratic Services on completion.   

Agenda Item 2 Page 7



 
EXECUTIVE DECISIONS TAKEN BY CABINET PORTFOLIO HOLDER OR DELEGATED OFFICER 

NOTICE OF DECISION  
 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER AND CONTACT OFFICER 
 

TITLE OF DECISION: 
CHOICE BASED LETTINGS AND HOUSING OPTIONS 

NAME OF DECISION TAKER: MARK CULLINAN 
POSITION AND 
RESPONSIBILITY HELD: 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

CONTACT OFFICER: BRYONY BOLTON 

TELEPHONE: 01524 582586 
E-MAIL: bbolton@lancaster.gov.uk 
Details of Decision:  
 
That Abritas be awarded the contract for the provision of IT software to enable the implementation 
of Choice Based Lettings and Housing Options. 
Reasons for the decision:   
The Northern Housing Consortium (NHC) undertook a procurement exercise to select Abritas as 
the nominated supplier for the framework agreement. Abritas will provide an IT solution that will 
come within our budget and meet our requirements. 

IS THE DECISION URGENT  
YES/NO  
 

I CONFIRM THAT I HAVE BEEN CONSULTED ON THE ABOVE DECISION AND THAT IT IS URGENT AND 
REASONABLE IN ALL THE CIRCUMSTANCES. (IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 17 OF THE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PROCEDURE 
RULES) 
SIGNATURE OF THE OVERVIEW & 
SCRUTINY CHAIRMAN: N/A 

I confirm that I have taken account of the options proposed by officers, the various 
implications set out in the report and the comments of the Monitoring and Section 151 
Officers and am authorising the decision as set out above. 
   

SIGNATURE OF DECISION TAKER: Mark Cullinan 
DATE: 29 July 2010 

THIS SECTION TO BE COMPLETED BY DEMOCRATIC SERVICES REF NO. OD/2010/5 
DATE DECISION 
TAKEN: 29 July 2010 

DATE RECEIVED BY 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES: 29 July 2010 

DATE DECISION 
PUBLISHED: 29 July 2010 

IMPLEMENTATION DATE 
( publication day + 5 
working days): 

6 August 2010 

 
A copy of the report considered by the decision taker should be appended to this form and 

forwarded immediately to Democratic Services on completion.   

Agenda Item 3Page 8


	Agenda
	1 Return of Monies Allocated to the Former Lancaster, Morecambe and District Sports Council
	ICM12 Report Sports Council Grant Monies

	2 Window Replacement - Warton
	3 Choice Based Lettings and Housing Options

